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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of South City Projects (Kolkata)
Limited (“the Holding”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as ‘the
Group’), which comprise the Consolidated balance sheet as at 31t March 2019, and the consolidated statement of
Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the
consideration of reports of the other auditor on separate financial statements of subsidiaries referred to in the Other
Matters section below, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) rules 2015, as
amended (‘Ind AS®) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group as at March 31, 2019, and their Consolidated profit, their Consolidated total comprehensive income,
their consolidated changes in equity and their cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Holding’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in Holding Company’s Annual report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries, audited by the other auditors, to the extent
it relates to these entities and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the subsidiaries is traced from their financial
statements audited by other auditors.
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If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity
and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its subsidiaries are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its subsidiaries to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.




Agrawal Tondon & Co. Room No. : 7, Ist Floor, 59 Bentinck Street

(Formerly : Agrawal Sanjay & Company) Kolkata - 700 069
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Website - www.agrawalsanjay.com
Firm Registration No. : 329088E E-mail Id : agrawaltondon2019@gmail.com

*  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,
2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We also communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of ten subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total
assets of Rs. 211072.74 lakhs as at 31st March 2019 and total revenues of Rs.5619.90 lakhs for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of the subsidiaries and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act,
in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

(b) Certain of these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries and which have
been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective
countries. The Company’s management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries from
accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally
accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Company’s management.
Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries is based on the report of
other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Company and audited
by us.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done
and the reports of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on the separate financial statements of the subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters section above we
report, to the extent applicable that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books
and the reports of the other auditor.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31March, 2019 taken on record
by the Board of Directors of the Holding and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies,
none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our Separate Report in Annexure A” which
is based on the auditors’ reports of the Holding and subsidiary companies. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting of
those companies.

(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Holding Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197
of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of
the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under section 197 (16) which are
required to be commented upon by us.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i. The Holding Company and its Subsidiaries has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its Consolidated Financial Statements — Refer Note No.33

ii. The Holding Company and its Subsidiaries did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which has been required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Place: Kolkata Partner
Dated: 28™ June 2019 Membership No. 060534
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of South City Projects(Kolkata) Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding™) as on 31st March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated
Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended on that date. We have not audited the
internal financial controls of the subsidiary companies which are incorporated in India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding and its subsidiary incorporated in India are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance note on
Audit of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act,2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding
and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other
Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Holding and its
subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated
in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 329088E

% &m\oﬂm\
Radhakrishan Tondon

Partner
Membership No. 060534

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 28" June 2019




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

Rs. in Lacs

Particulars Note As at March 31, | As at March
2019 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
1, Property, Plant and Equipment +.1 21.336.07 16.039.76
) Investment Property +3 107.24
o Capual Work-m-Progress 4.2 DI4T.TY 11.633.34
(ol Tnrangible Assers 44 10.32 1542
fe; Fiancal Assets
- Investments 6 A3.170.65 11.120.94
- Trade Recevables 8 27349 21109
Other Bank Balances 14.2 267.00 -
- Loans 9 380.39 879.19
- Other Fmanenl Assets 10 1.223.64 1.699.74
) Deferred Tax Assets 23 3.13 3.36
(g Other Non-Current Assets 12 16,627.79 141.68Y.65
93,747.52 86,314.49
Current assets e
A invenrores 13 1.39.583.36 10036490
b Fmancial assets
(1 Investments 7 13349 105,14
) Trade Recevables 8 1.156.25
() Cash and Cash Feuivalents 141 941.89
(1) Other Bank Balances 14.2 . 18.21
7 Loans 9 310672 381492
vi) Other Finaneal \ssets 10 4073.61 90.65
(¢) Carrent ‘Tax Assets I 993.74
) Other Current Assers 12 773340 7.710.26
1,60,268.35 1,15,195.95
TOTAL ASSETS 2,54,015.88 2,01,510.44
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a Lquity Share capital 13 450.07 150,07
) Other Equity 16 3119843 2544690
Equity auributable to equity holders of the parent 31,648.50 25,896.97
(e Non-Controllng mierests (151.23) (186.77)
Total Equity 31,497.27 25,710.20
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
[ Fmaneial habilines
1 Borrowings 17 GOOT1.85 2780409
n Other Fmanenl Labihoes 21 75283 3.694.97
b Deterred Tax Liabiliye 25 1.339.28 908.63
¢ Other Non- Current Liabilities 22 6027435
- Provisions 19 27943 265.90
68,410.83 32,673.61
Current Liabilities
() Fmancal Tabihtes
1 Borrowmgs 20 62.864.95 17.052.82
n; Trade payables 18
Towl Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and 16.01
Small Enterprises
Toral Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro +.600.78 682131
Enrerprises and Small Enterprises
n1) Other fimancial abilines 21 9.929.37 21.796.98
M Other current habilites 22 67.383.33
¢ Cuarrent 'Tax Labilities 11 -
() Provisions 19 78,50 72.19
1,54,107.77 1,43,126.63
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILTIES 2,54,015.88 2,01,510.44

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

I'or AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Aecountants

Fwm Regstration No o 326

Radhakrishan Tondon
Parmer

Membership No- 060534

Phace: Kolkata FOf &uﬂ‘ C“y ngﬂﬁts (KOU(E&B) Ltd..

Dared: 28th June, 2019 (;7
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Company Secretary

]

For and on behalf of Board of Dircctors
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South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2019
Rs. in Lacs

Particulars Note 2018-19 2017-18
Income
Revenue from Operatons 24 10406.54
Other Income 25 538745
Total Income 22,100.74 15,993.99
Expenses
Construetion Costs 26 1887298 26216.71
Purchase of Stock m Trade 295
Increase / (Decrease) momventones 27 43.093.79; 22.147.67)
Emplovee benefits expenses 28 7337
Deprecation and amortisation expenses 29 144289 1.088.99
Fmance Cost 30 10849 3.748.68
Other xpenses 31 475479 3.505.62
Total Expenses 14,819.74 15,172.86
Profit/(loss) before tax 7.251.00 821.13
Tax Expenses .
Current tax 1.939.60 64842
Tax for carlier yvears 60.26 49.99
Deterred s eredir (et (116,14 70.20
Total Tax Expense 1,883.71 768.61
Profit for the vear (I11) 5.397.28 3252
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:
Re-Measurement gams on defined benefit plans - (1-44.23) (7.06)
Income Tax effect 92 240
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
Foreign exchange gain/ loss ansing on translagon of Foreign Operation 6145 25.406)
Income Tax effect 8.81
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (IV) 3216 (21.31)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax attributable to (III+IV) 5,449.44 31.21
Profit for the year attributable to:
Fquity holders ol the parent 5.763.39 2063.11
Non-controlling mterests 366.11) 210.59)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:
Fquity holders of the parent .81 17.95)
Non-controlling mterests 7.35 (3.36)
Larnmgs per share - Basie and Diluted (Nominal value Rs. 10 per share) 32 128.06 3.85
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of the consolidated financial statements

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

South City Prgjects (Kolkytd
(4 % -

Director

As per our report of even date

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon

Partner
Membership No- 060534

Place: Kolkata mum Ci Pl'OjthS (KOl;\ata) Ltd

Dated: 28th June, 2019
)L~

For South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.

@ sl

Comipgny Secretary

Director



South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2019

a. Bquuty Share Capiral
(Refer Note 15)

f
‘|'.(|\|Il\ shares of Rs 10 eachissued. subserbed and wlly pard No. of shares Rs. in Lacs

Ae 31 March 2018 45,00,700 450.07

|
}l\\'l.u ot sharc camral

[AC31 March 2019 45,00,700 450.07

2. Other equity
(Refer Note 16)
Rs. in Lacs

For the year ended 31st March, 2019
: Reserves & Surplus Items of OCI
I
Foreign
Remeasurement exchange N
. e Non Controlling | .., ;
Particulars Securities Premium . = 3 . of gains/ loss gain/loss on Total ( "8 Total Equity
Retained Earnings| General Reserve| Capital Reserve R . Interest
Account on Defined translation of
Benefit Plans Foreign
Operation
As at 1 April 2018 66000 4,960.66 20,000.00 30.38 (8.98) (146.96) 44690 186.77) 25,260.13
Profit tor the vear 3,763.39 = 76339 (360.11) 5,397.28
Other comprehensive mcome tor|
the vear (9.30) 5411 4481 35 52.16
Total Comprehensive Income
for the year : 5,763.39 s = (9.30) 54.11 5,808.20 (358.76) 5,449.44
Additons/ deductions (56.38) l . (36.38) 393.05 336.67
Dividend (Refer Nore 49) E - .25 1.25
_— l?i\':dund Distribution tax (Refer . .
Note 49 (0.29) (0.2 (0.29)
Ndditons, deductions (80.20) . . = E 5
[As at 31 March 2019 660.00 10,649.56 20,000.00 - (18.28) (92.85) 31,198.43 (151.23) 31,047.20
For the vear ended 3lst March, 2018 Rs. in Lacs
Reserves & Surplus Items of OCI
Foreign
Remeasurement exchange Non Controlling
Particulars euritic - f oains/ loss ain/loss Total 5 ) 2| Towl Equit
‘ AERBBLISRIER Retained carnings | General Reserve| Capiral Reserve of gaing/ loss gain/ 0.“ on Interest ‘ ’
Account : on Defined translation of
Benefit Plans Foreign
Operation
As acIst April 2017 GO 20000400 24402 14.32) 133.67 IR205. 1! (R
volis for fhe e () [, 5% 2.8
Uithey :-wm]m\\( e mennie ton 66 13.2¢) (R L RAMY
the vear
Total  Comprehensive  Income 263.11 - - (4.66) (13.29) A5.10 (213.95) 321
lor the vear
Aeldinngs dedlucions 256 230 LIS 3.5
Prvadend Reter Note 12 24810 TN R 247349
I\\vuJ-’uyA Prsinbuinar nas Robey S0l 5 301 % P 10U (3
ote 4
L \ddinons dedortons S RO.20
As at 31 March 2018 660,00 3,966.66 20,000.00 36.38 (8.98) (146.96) 23,446.90 (186.77) 25,260.13

The accompanymg notes are an iteeral part of the consolidated financil statements

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

South Ci @%}tzym ) Ltd

Director

As per our report of even dat
-~ 1P ! ¢

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 329088

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partmer
Membership No- 060534

Place: Kolkata o m Ci rojects (Kolkata) Ltd
Dated: 28th June, 2019
A v “/ —
For South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.
Nirector

Company Secretary



SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2019

Rs. in Lacs

Pariculars 8. -
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Ner profit before rax 7,281.00 821.13
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flow
Deprectation & \Amornsanon expense 1,442.89 1,088.99
[“inance cosrs 4,108.49 3,748.68
Share Dematerialisarion & ST°1 Fxpenses 0.13 0:22
Sundry Balances Written Off 16.32 11555
Dividend Received from non current investments 9.91) (1.54)
Profit on sale of non current investments (29.55) (74.25)
Profit/(Loss) on sale of Property, Plant & Fquipment 0.99 859.63
Sundry Balances Written Back (29.87) (0.51)
Farr value (gam)/loss on financial assets (2,052.11) (2,711.06)
Interest Income (2,987.55) (724.63)
Operating profit before working capital changes 7,740.82 3,122.21
\dd: Decrease in working capiral
Adjustments for-
Decrease/ (Increase) in Working Capital . -
Inventories (39,220.46) (20,812.18)
Trade Receivables (130.92) 1,890.05
Trade Pavables (2,190.97) 1,008.33
Loans, Deposits and Orher Financial \ssets (4,499.87) 1,423.35
Orher Current and Non Current asscets (1,231.60) (4,532.03)
Orther Pinanctal 1 iabilities (14,809.75) 12,267.09
Provisions 19.83 166.30
Orther Current and Non Current Liabilities 15,692.19 19,749.41
Cash generated in operations (38,630.74) 14,282.54
Income Tax Paid (net of refund) 1,883.71 768.61
Net Cash inflow from Operating Activities (40,514.45) 13,513.92
B.  CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Dividend Recetved 9.91 1.54
Interest Recetved 2,987.55 724.63
Investment in Fixed Deposits (Net) (1,355.28)
Sale of Property, Plant & liquipment 14.80 4,228.61
Sale of Non current Investments 31.96 3,241.63
1,688.93 8,196.42
Less : Purchase of Property, Plant & liquipment 5,351.58 19,738.04
Purchase of Non current Investments 48.36 -
Share Dematerialisation & ST Fixpenses 0.13 0.22
Net cash flow from Investing Activitics (3,711.13) (11,541.85)
. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Loan Taken/(Repaid) 48,019.88 896.37
Dividend paid (including ner dividend distribution tax) .96 (2:975.02)
Interest paid (4,108.49) (3,748.08)
Net cash flow from Financing Activitics 43,912.36 (5,827.32)
1>.  FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE: 388.83 (17.77)

Netmerease / (deerease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C+1)
Cash and Cash liquivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer note-14.1)

Cash and Cash Fiquivalents at the end of the year (Refer note-14.1)

75.62
941.89
1,017.51

(3,873.02)
4,814.91
941.89




Notes :
(@ The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared wnder the "Indirect Method” as set out - the Indian Accounting Standacd (Ind AS - 7) - Statcement of Cash Flow.

b Rs in Lacs
Pariculars et As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Cash and Cash Fqguiwvalants comprises of

Cashomn hand 292 6.76
Batances with banks

— O current accounts 995.08 905.63
= Leposits with ongmal matunty ot less than three months 19.51 2950
Casih_and Cash Equivalants_in Cash Flow Statement 1,017.51 941.89

Ammendment to Ind AS 7

Phe amendments o Ind As
fnancing acovines cluding both changes ansing from: cash flows and non-cash changes sugpesung inclusion of a reconciliation between opening and closing balances m the balance
sheet for habthities ansimg tfrom financmg activines 1o meer the disclosure requirment. This amendment has become effective from 01.04.2017 and the required disclosure s made

T Cash Plow Sratements requires the entines 10 provide disclosure that enable users ot fimaneal statements o evaluate changes e habilnes ansing from

below. There s no - other ympact on the financal statements due 1o this amendment .

Particulars As at 31st March Cash Flow Fair Value Changes | As on 31st March 2019
2018
Borrowmgs- Naon Current 20.821.13 32.207.76 - 39,028.89
Borrowmgs- Current 32.397.26 15,812.12 68,200.38
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date
For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO. For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner
Membership No- 060534

South Ci Wj) Ltd

Director

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 28th June, 2019

South City Projects (Koliata) Ltd

D ‘h//
For South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd. Director

//
Company Secretary



SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2019

1. Corporate Information

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprised Financial Statements of South City Projects
(Kolkata) Limited (the Company) and its Subsidiaries and Joint Venture (collectively, the Group) for
the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Holding Company 1s a Public limited Company established in 1995 under the Companies Act
applicable in India. The Holding Company is engaged in the business of real estate development and’
also provides rental services, maintenance services which are related to the overall development of real
estate business. The Holding Company is domiciled in India and has its registered office at 375, Prince
Anwar Shah Road, Jadavpur, Kolkata — 700068.

2. Basis of Preparation of financial statements
a) Compliance with INDAS

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group prepared its financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies
Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind-AS”)
notified under section 133 of The Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
directors on 28" June, 2019.

b) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2019. Control 1s achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
vartable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Company controls an investee if and only 1if the
'Company has:

a. Power over the investee (Le. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

b.  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

c.  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

The Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumistances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses
control of the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions

and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other

than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar
<

circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member’s financial statement




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2019

preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Company’s accounting .
policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpoce of consolidation are drawn up to same
reporting date as that of the parent Company, ie., year ended on 31 March. When the end of the
reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for
consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements
of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary.

In term of Ind AS 110 - “Consolidated Financial Statements”, the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries are combined on a line- by- line basis by adding together the book/ fair value of
like items like assets, liabilities, income and expenditure, after fully eliminating intra group balances,
intra group transactions and any unrealized Profit/ Loss included therein. Profit or loss and each
component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

The difference of the cost of the Group of its Investment in Subsidiaties over its proportionate share
in the equity of the respective investee companies as at the date of acquisition of stake is recognised 1n
the Fiancial Statement as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

*  Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

*  Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

*  Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

*  Recognises the fair value of the consideration received '

*  Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

¢ Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

¢ Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

c) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on
historical cost basis, except for certain assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair values as
explained in relevant accounting principles.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard
1s initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
- policy hitherto in use.




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2019

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
3.1. Current and Non-Current classification

Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as sixty
months for ongoing projects and twelve months in case of completed projects for the purpose of
current- non-current classification of assets and liabilities. All assets and liabilities have been
classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and other criteria
set out 1 the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013.

3.2. Foreign Currencies
[tems included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the

primary economic environment in which the Group operates (the functional currency'). The
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Group's functional and

presentation currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in by the Group at spot rates at the
functional currency spot rate (.e. INR) at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions in foreign
currencies and from the translation of monetary asscts and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit & l.oss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are’
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monctary items that
are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (ie., translation differences on items due to fair valuation is recognised in

OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

3 3. Fair Value Measurement
Fair value 1s the price that would be recetved to sell an asset.or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market pfuuap'mts act 1n their best

economic interest.




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

NOTE

S TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED

MARCH 31, 2019

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable mputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and labilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

a) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

b) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement 1s directly or indirectly observable

¢) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement 1s unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities during and at the end of
the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future
periods.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant

risk of changes 1n value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are carried at cost of acquisition, on
current cost basis less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if any. Cost
comprises purchase price and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its worki




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2019

3.7

purchase price. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. Machinery
spares which can be used only in connection with an item of fixed asset and whose use is expected
to be irregular are capitalised and depreciated over the useful life of the principal item of the
relevant assets. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise,
when a major inspection 1s performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference:
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income
statement when the asset 1s derecognised.

Depreciation 1s provided on Written down value method over the useful lives of property, plant
and equipment as estimated by management. Pursuant to Notification of Schedule 1T of the
Companies Act, 2013 depreciation 1s provided on prorate basis on written down value method at
the rates determined based on estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment where
applicable. However, leaschold land is depreciated over lease period on straight line basis.

Asset Useful Life
Building 60)

Sale Centre Building 06
Plant & Equipment 15
Electrical Installation & Equipment 10
Furniture & [ittings 10
Vehicles 3
Office Equipment 3-5

Fire Protection System 5

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are recognized only when future economic benefits arising out of the assets flow
to the enterprise and are amortised over their useful life of three years. Intangible assets acquired
separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized
and are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss for the year during which such expenditure is
incurred. '




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2019

3.8.

3.9,

3.10,

311,

5.12.

Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development

Capital work-mn-progress and intangible assets under development are carried at cost. Cost
mncludes land, related acquisition expenses, development / construction costs, borrowing costs
and other direct expenditure.

Investment Property

Management has assessed applicability of Ind AS 40 - Investment Property to the property held
to carn income from rentals. In assessing such 'lpphc'lblhty management has considered the
ownership of assets, terms of license agreement, various services provided to the licensee etc. The
Group considers these other services as significant ir addition to the charged. Based on such
assessment, the management has cons1dued the mall property as owner occupied property and
hence classified as Property, Plant & FEquipment.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesscs at cach reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the lnqhm of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price
and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless thc asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 1ecovcmble amount, the
asset 1s considered impaired and is written down to its ecoverable amount. ‘

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are
taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation
model 1s used.

Inventories

Raw materials, Construction work-in-progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost of inventoties comprise all cost of purchase including cost of land,
borrowing cost, development costs and other cost incurred in bringing them to their present
location and condition. The cost, in general, is determined using weighted average cost method.

Contract cost incurred related to future activity of the contract are recognised as an asset provided
it is probable that they will be recovered during the contract petiod. Such costs represent the
amount due from customer and are often classified as Construction work-in-progress.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue and Other Income

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group 'md
it can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at thc fair value of the consi




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2019

received/recervable net of rebate and taxes. The Group applies the revenue recognition criteria to
each nature of revenue transaction as set-out below:

Revenue from contracts with customers

With effect from 1 April 2018, the Company has adopted IND AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” which introduces a new five-step approacit to measuring and recognising revenue
from contracts with customers. Under IND AS 115, revenue is recognised on satisfaction of  performance
obligation at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for wansferring goods or services to a customer. The Company has elected to apply the Cumulative catch
up method in adopting IND AS 115. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method, the
comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was
nsignificant. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the
remaining performance obligation related disclosures. Revenue is recognised to the extent thatitis probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and can be reliably measured.

Revenue from Operating Lease

Income from properties is accounted for on a straight line basis over the lease term. Contingent rental
income is recognised as income in the period in which it is earned. If not received at balance date, revenue
1s reflected on the balance sheet as a receivable and carried at its recoverable amount.

Revenue from Maintenance Services

Revenue is recognised on satisfaction of performance obligation at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring services to a customer.

Revenue from Real Estate

In case of Real Estate Sales where Agreement of Sale is executed for under constructed properties, revenue
in respect of individual contracts is recognised when performance on the contract is considered to be
completed and it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company.

Disaggregation of Revenue

Note 18 presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31, 2019
by performance obligation. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other

economic factors:

3.13. Employee Benefits
I. Defined Contribution Plan

a. Provident Fund
Contributions in respect of all Employees are made to the Regional Provident Fund
as pet the provisions of Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions
Act, 1952 and are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when services
are rendered by employees. The Group has no obligation other than the contribuss
payable to the Regional Provident fund. '




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2019

II. Defined Benefit Plan

a. Gratuity

Gratuity 1s a post-employment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan.
The lability recognized in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value
of the defined benefit/obligation at the balance sheet date, together with adjustments
for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined
benefit/ obligation 1s calculated at or near the balance sheet date by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method. This is based on standard rates of.
inflation, salary growth rate and mortality. Discount factors are determined close to
cach year-end by reference to matket yields on government bonds that have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. Current Service cost and
Interest component on the Group’s defined benefit plan is included in employee
benefits expense. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability
are included in other comprehensive income.

III. Long Term Compensated Absences

The Group treats accumulated leave to the extent such leave are carried forward as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences
are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at
the year-end. Current Service cost and Interest component arising out of such valuation is.
included in employee benefits expense. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-
measurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive income. The Group
presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have
an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where
Group has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period
beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability.

3.14. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets even if that right is not explicitly specified
in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2016, the group has determined whether the
arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of
transition.
Ay a lessee

A lease is classlﬁed at the 1 1ncept10n date as a ﬁn'mce lease or an opcmtmg lease. \ lease th’lt

as a hn'mcc 1 ase.

-.\"‘7) N
: B ”/AGCO/



SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2019

3.15.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date at the fair’
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease pavments.
Lease payments arc apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly
Attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the
Group’s general policy on the borrowing costs (See note 3.18). Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset 1s depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
Statement of Profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to ‘compensate for
the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. i

,‘l\ d /('«\1\'0/~

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised
on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Taxes on Income
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income-tax s measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the
respective tax jurisdictions where the Group operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred tax 1s provided using the Balance Sheet method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and labilities and their catrying amounts in the financial
statements at the reporting date. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset 1s realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred t;w assets are recognised for all deductible tempor'u'y differences‘ 'md unused tax losses

defucnces and lmsu
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3.16.

347,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred rax asser to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed
at cach reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax labilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the
cearlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and
loss.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
bevond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. The Group does
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Costs include interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred and exchange
differences artsing from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs. Borrowing Costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying
assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to construction /
development of the qualifying asset up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use 1s ad
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3.18.

3.19.

Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the
qualifving assets 1s interrupted. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

Earnings per Share

Basic Earnings per Share 1s calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period 1s adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods
presented 1s adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential
equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
cotresponding change in resources.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a-
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

A. Financial assets
i. Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset.

ii. Subsequent measurement :
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two
categories:
a. Debt instruments at amortised cost
b. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

FVTOCI

Debt instruments at amortised cost other than derivative contracts

A “debt instrument’ 1s measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions

are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective mterest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost 1s calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
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profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.
This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value other than
equity investments measured at deemed cost on first ime adoption of Ind AS. Liquity
instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Group decides to classify the same either as at FVTOCI or FV'TPL. .
The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification 1s made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of
investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iii. De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:
e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset

v. Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets
and credit risk exposure: ' ‘
e [Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.,
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on Trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime FCLs at
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition:

Lifetime FCL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the entity expects to receive, discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However,
in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estima

P an
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reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument

e (Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment
loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized
as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected
under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various
financial instruments 1s described below:

e Financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL 1s presented as an allowance, i.e.,
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria,
the group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

[For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of
facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be
identified on a timely basis.

B. Financial liabilities
i. Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial
Instruments.

ii. Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: |

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include derivatives, financial liabilities
held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
dertvative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded
dertvatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective

hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are re rofit or loss.
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"inancial habilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss
are designated as such at the mitial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS
109 are satistied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable
to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings

Afrer initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are
recognised 1 the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost 1s calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade receivables and Contract Balances

The company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as cither a
receivable or as Contract Asset. A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional
upon passage of time. Revenue are recognized as related service are performed. Revenues
in excess of billings is recorded as Contract Asset and is classified as a financial asset for
the cases as right to consideration is unconditional upon passage of time. As per assessment
of contracts, the right to receive the paymentis established once the services are performed.

A contract liability is the company’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer
for which the entity has received consideration from the customer. '

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior
to the end of financial year. The amounts are generally unsecured. Trade and other payables
are presented as current liabilities unless payment 1s not due within the Company’s
operating cycle. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the lender for a loss it incurs because the specified
borrower fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a loan
agreement. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a Liability at fair value,”
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the hi
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3.21.

determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial liability 1s derecognised when the obligatton under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantally modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition -
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.

Operating Segments

The Business process and Risk Management Committee of the Group, approved by the Board of
Directors and Audit Committee performs the function of allotment of resources and assessment
of performance of the Group. Considering the level of activities performed, frequency of their
meetings and level of finality of their decisions, the Group has identified that Chief Operating
Decision Maker function is being performed by the Business process and Risk Management
Committee. The financial information presented to the Business process and Risk Management.
Commuittee in the context of results and for the purposes of approving the annual operating plan
is on a consolidated basis. The Group’s business activity falls within three reportable business
segment viz. ‘Real estate projects development’, ‘rental activities’ and ‘others - unallocated’. The
sales being operated wholly in the domestic market, the financial statement are reflective of the
information required by Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

Rounding off

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule 111 to the Act, unless otherwise stated.
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Note 4.1 - Property, Plant and Equipment (Current Year) Rs m Lacs
Gross Block at Cost - o Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block
Disposals Disposals
Paruculars As at Adjustmen i , / As at Asat |Adjustmen| For the 7 Upto 31- As at As at
0104-2018 tdue to HONST A Gjustmen 31032019 01-042018 | tdueto | year  Adjustmen  03-2019 31032019 31-03-2018 .
translation s translation | ts
Leaschold Lanu s - ; = 98100 29.80 | 14.90 S 4470 936,30 931.20
PN Lenst 1375377 5,220 - 18,980 06 01348 J e 9‘)8.39 n = L7187 7 2 1274024
e Mpace 29028 = 29028 - 14.14 - 14.14 276 14
Uithers 57182 33.46) = - 53830 339.87 | 92.26 - 41180 120.50
Phint & Lquipments 1.932.06 397. - 234972 296.27 - 993.11 1.356.61
Fire Protecnon Systen s 43 & = 173.08 n 38.94 - 47.32 129.97
| Bleersical Installanon & Lqupnicnts 02153 . SRR - U39 | 244 103.03 - 347.07 39102 38049
Fumitire aid Fistures 31864 1021 53020 - 83809 157.97 | 86.01 - 237.04 O 05 100.67
Vehicles : . = E - ) = E =
Lamvance e 3185 - - 3185 77 = 752 . - 15.30 1635
Cithers AT - & .77 X 26400 1272 % ) 6.73 | 7.23 12.22 1377
Office Lygupment 266 40 @60 12347 302 4700 6410 . (179 10422 300 16352 208 20236
TOTAL 18,635.01 (46.55) 6,961.14 1480 2553481 2575.24 | (28.65) Ld6241 1024 399876 2153607 16,059.77
* Addinons ncludes Re6421.90 Tacs (rowards South Citye Mall Paxtension) of wlhich: RsA48.37 laes s mterest, transferred from Capital Work m Progress.
Note 4.2 - Capital Work in Progress (Current Year)
Gross Block at Cost B o
Particulars As at As at
e Additions  Capitalis
01:04-2018 PHES 31.03.2019
ation ¥*
Capiral Wtk 1163337 : 173633 642090 9,947.79
TOTAL 11,633.37 473633 642090 | 9,947.79 |
* Capitalzanon mcludes pre operating expenses of Rs. 37.75 laes
Note 4.3 - Investment Property
Particulars Gross Block at Cost Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block
On
. Deletions
Adjustme Adjust
As at = ’(;’:cn:; Additions | Deletibns As at As at it ’c:l:;:: Forthe [(Accumul| Asat As at As at
31.03.2018 : i 31.03.2019 |31.03.2018 ; Year ated upto [ 31.03.2019| 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
translatio translatio
n - the date
of sale)
Investment Properry - 107.27 107.27 - .- 0.03 0.03 107.24 -
TOTAL - 107.27 - 107.27 - 0.03 - 0.03 107.24 -
Note 4.4 - Intangible Asscts (Current Year) o
Gross quck at Cost . N Dejlrecialion / Amortisation Net Block
On
i < Deletion
Adjustm Adjustm S
Partic . | As at s(Accum  Asat
articulars As at ent due Additions | Deletion As at 31.03.201 M due | Forthe lated  31.03.201 As at As at
dditions J 31.03. - ulate
31.03.2018 to 31.03.2019 to Year 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
P s 8 3 upto the 9
translati translati |
‘ date of
on on
| sale)
Computtes Softwite 20,04 0.82) 200 ; 0.19) 841 - 22,44 4.38 1542
Goodwall - = 1.94 - = o z 104
TOTAL 29.04 (1.82 3.94 (0.19)] 841 - 2.4 10.32 1542
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Note 4.1 - Property, Plant and Equipment (Previous Year)

TS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Paruculars Gross Block at Cost Depreciation /Aj\or(ismiun
As at Additions Disposals / As at Asat | Forthe Disposals / As at
01.04.2017 ddiions Adjustments 31.03.2018 01.04.2017 Year Adjustments 31.03.2018
basehond Land 98109 98L09 90| 1490 ‘ 29.80
Bunldings . . 1 . 77 1 { .
Operatng |ase 11.229.19 3.353.25 82867 13,753.77 51385, 49963 | 1,013.48
Others 127,57 1.21 (143.04) 571.82 9597 93.62 | (150.26) 339.87
Planir & uipmits 163541 316,03 ©6i) 1,952.66 616 30860 @34 697.11
Fire Protection System 2431 7537 7. 96.42 ) 838 E 8.38
Electneal Installation & Fquipments 330.87 284.66 ‘ 624.53 152,06 ‘ 91.98 = 244.04
Furmirure and Fctures 20704 76,53 (34.15). 318.64 60.99 | 4704 | (49.94) 157.97
\ehicles ) . 1 |
Fnance Lease 1308 19.32 065 31.85 445, 375 0.12 778
Others 20.24 T 331, 37.77 6.22 | 749 0.99 12.72
- Labrary Books = | = = = ‘ I =,
Office Fqupment 56.24 208.13 (210 266.46 1555 3574 | (12.80) 64.10
TOTAL 14,948.23 4,346.97 66020 18,635.00  1,249.86 1, (214.25)  2,575.24
Addinons meludes Rs 183000 Lies (oswards Soth Canye Mall Extension) of which Rsc 8307 Taes s inrerest, mansterred from Capital Work i Progress.
Note 4.2 - Capital work in Progress (Previous Year)
Particulars Gross Block at Cost
As at Additions Disposals / As at
01.04.2017 Adjustments | 3103.2018
SCAL Fxrension 139.03 13,377.40 -l.Lﬁ}.(l‘) 11,933.34
TOTAL 439.03 15,377.40 4,183.09  11,633.34
U Includes Rs 126,57 fws toswards inrerest.
Note 4.4 - Intangible assets (Previous Year)
Paruculars Gross Block at Cost Dj]greciu(ion / Amortisation
As at Additions Disposals / As at As at | For the Disposals / As at
0L.04.2017 Adjustments 31.03.2018 01.04.2017 Year Adjustments 31.03.2018
Computer Softre 15,09 1365 B 2064 | 568 | s 14.22
: | | [ - -
TOTAL 15.99 13.65 - 29.64 5.68 “ 854 ‘ - 14.22

Rs. in Lacs

Net Block

As at As at
31032018  01.04.2017
951.29 966.19
12,740.29 1071536
231.95 33160
1,255.55 124925
88.04 2851
380.49 187.81
160.67 146.95
2407 9.03
25.05 301
202.36 40.69
16,059.76 13.698.39
Net Block
As at As at
31032018 01.04.2017 -
15.42 1031
15.42 10.31
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NOTE 6: NON- CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Rs. in Lacs

No. of Shares/ Units/
T

Nominal Value
per Share/ Unit

As at

As at

2018-19 2017-18 March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
At Deemed Cost
Equited shares-Unquoted
In Others .
Bengal lectrie Works @rd. # 1,500 1.500 3
Bengal Tamp Lad. # 17.833 17,833 10
Berlex India L) = 1999 1999 10
Equited shares-Unquoted
South Ciry Internanonal Schoot 15.300 15.300 10.00 1.53 1.5
1.53 1.53
At Fair Value through Profit & Loss:
Equity Shares - Quoted
In Other Companies
Bombay Dyeing & Mg Company Led.* 5 5 2 0.01 0.01
DLE Led.? I i 2 0.00 0.00
Godrep Industres Ld.* 1 1 1 n.ol (.01
Himdustan Construction Company Led.* 2 2 1 0.00 0.00
Housing Development & Infra Lid.* 1 1 10 0.00 0.00
Rattan Inda Infrastucture Led.* 2 2 2 0.00 0.00
Indiabulls Real Lstare Lid. 1 1 2 .00 (.00
Omaxe Lud ! 1 1 10 0.00 0.00
Parsvnath Developers Lid.* 2 2 3 0.00 0.00
Purvankara Projects Led. * 1 1 5 0.00 0.00
Relmanee Industries .t 10,000 10,000 10 136.33 88.28
Sobha Developers Led. 1 1 10 (.01 0.01
Unitech L. | 1 2 0,00 0.00
Net Quoted Invesuments 136,56 8831
Less: Provision for Diminution in Value of investments =
Net Quoted Investments - 136.36 88.31
At Fair Value through Profit & Loss:
In Units of Mutual Fund - Quoted**
Quoted
Birla Sun Life Corporate Bond Fund (G) 2.16.81,260 10 2964.85 303,77
DSP Black Rock Tncome Opportuniues Fund (G) 3 1.20,87.855 10 343848
DSP Black Rock Mutual Fund Colleetion Account 8046501 80,46,501 1 225832 230717
Birla Sun Lite FTP - Corporate Bond Series (G3) - 2.10,00,000 10) ) 2.500.00
Relanee Corporate Bond Fund (G) 1.83,77.623 1,83.77,623 10 434483 2420.33
Biela Sunlife Medmm Term Plan (G) 5 565 39.16,565 10 134833 1.300.34
Franklm Indin Corp Bond Opportunines Fund (G) 253392 8255392 10 1.616.32 335
Hdte Corporate Debr Opportunities Fund - R - (G 17849174 1.7849.17+4 10 2,72291
[dte Corporare Debt Opportunties Fund - 1 - (G) 438251 4438251 10 T06.51 662.81
TCICT Prudential Regular Savings Fund - Growth LGH16.649 1.6:4.16.649 10 3.261.74 3.049.39
[CICT Prudental Mutual Fund (G) 9375038 93.73,038 10 2.660.54 2534.75
BOT ANA Corporate Credie Spectrum Fund 8157405 8157405 10 LO79.79 1.088.85
[Tdfe Corporate Delst Opportunites Fund 3921496 5921496 10 H03.3%
Kotak Income Opportumtes Fund (G) 2.96.61.666 296.61.666 10 603407
[ &1 Mutual Fund - Collecnion Account 2696097 96,96.097 10 204487 1.930.20
Relauce Corporate Bond Fund - Divect Growth Aecount 10483437 10 1.:609.72 165446
Reliance Corporate Bond Fund - Growth Plan 7637319 10 112346 2825.14
U Mutual Fund Collection .\ /¢ 1,09,09,24-4 10 182473 1.708.17
Irankhn Indin Corp Bond Opportunmites Fund (G) 22556940 10 2.800.10 373043

42,903.02

40,914.21
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At Fair Value through Profit & Loss:

Invesunents through PMS Pool Account in Quoted Shares

\san Pamnes §d
vsteal Polv Techmk Led
Bagay I'mance Lrd
Bayay Fmsery 1ad
Britanna Industries Tad

Cholamandalam Investment And Finance Company Ltd
Odisha Cement Limated (Previously Dalmm Bharar §ad)

Dabur Indm 1td

Divis Laboratones Lid
Facher Motors Led
lavells Tndi Lud

Indusmd Bank T.ed

Korak Mahmdra Bank Lrd
MR Led

Max Fiancal Services Lid
Minda Industres Lid
Motherson Sumi Systems Led
Pl Industres Lid

Page Industries Lud
Prchiliee Tndustres Lud
Shree Cements Lrd
Welspun Indi Lid

TOTAL

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments
Aggregate market value of Quoted Investments
rorey,

Aggregate amount of linquoted Investments

437
787
463
160
45
353
177
858

462
512
9
642
141
1.940
722
31
406
16
3472

a0 +.90
651 7.05
.07 8.19
il 8.29
774 721
.33 8.02
+.59 5.1

351

3442

3.3

A3

8.70

TR

5.81

372

283

A5

197

698

298
129.74 116.89
43,170.65 41,120.94
43.169.12 41,119.41
43,169.12 41,119.41
1.53 153

The shaves are pending transfer m- Company's name.

Refer Nore 44

* Represents securities pledged with Banks and Others as

NOTE 7: CURRENT INVESTMENTS

curity agamst Loans and Guarantees taken by the company and jomt development companies.

Rs. in Lacs

Face Value per Share/ Unit

As at

As at

March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018

2018-19 2017-18
At Fair Value through Profit & Loss:
In Units of Mutual Fund - Quoted
Rehanee Liquid Fund Treasury Plan Growth - D 1.172.63 121.189 3349 5.4
Investment in Govt. Bonds
8170 GOTL 2044 "No. of Bonds 93,000 L'mts) 95,000 95.000 100.00) 100.00
Aperegate value of Corrent Investments 153.49 105.14
NOTE 8: TRADE RECEIVABLES (At amortised cost)
Rs. in Lacs
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Trade Receivables

Unsecured, Considered good

TOTAL

27349

21109

1224.77

1.156.25

273.49

21109

1,224.77

1,156.25
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NOTIE 9: LOANS (At amorused cost)

Rs. in Lacs

Non-current

Curre;

nt

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Seeurity Deposits

Leans o related parties (Refer Note 40)
Considered Good
Considered Doubrtul
Less: Provision

Loans to others

Oither Loans

TOTAL

167.32 186.12 3372 8.06
413.06 693.07
679.69 GT9.11
(679.69) (679.11) - )
1.341.73 3.8006.80
3.709.27
580.39 879.19 5,106.72 3,814.92

Foans and recenvables ave non- dervatve finaneil assets which generate a fised or varmble mterest mcome of the Group. The Carrymg value may be affecred by

changes m the credit nisk of the counterparties,

NOTE 10: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (at Amortised Cost)

(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

Rs. in Lacs

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 | March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Vdvances to Related Parties (Refer Note +48) 1.20:.36 1.204.06 20.81 63.5:
Interest Recevable 19.28 35.68 105277 25.10
Debr Service Reserve Aecount” - H0.00
TOTAL 1,223.64 1,699.74 4,073.61 90.65
e represents margin money mfavour of Axis Bank for Term Loan availed.
NOTE 11: TAX ASSE'TS
Rs. in Lacs
Non-current Current

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Current Tax Assets 'Net = 072 Y93.74
TOTAL - - (0.72) 993.74
NOTE 12: OTHER ASSETS
Rs. in Lacs
Non-current Current

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Capial Advanees = 279.90
Mdvances other than capital advances

Jome Development Agrecment 495319 4.128.62 -

Vdvances for Projects, Lxpenses ete. - - 839.76 29697
Prepaxd |ease Rentals 9.187.35 10,202.24 346 295
Prepaid expenses 242.16 L019.03
Balances wath statutory /- government authorities = 140805 333.86
Advance gven to Suppliers and Contractors = 3.536.75 3917.80
Other Advances 78.89 1.683.22 139.6:4

TOTAL 16,627.79 14,689.65 7,733.40 7,710.26
NOTE 13: INVENTORIES
Nalued ar Tower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)
Rs. in Lacs
Current
As at As at

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Raw materals and Consumables
Construcnon Work - i - progress
Land
Others
Fmshed Goods

TOTAL

30406

606.27

4.509.93
88.865.02

(.383.68

1,00,364.90




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

NOTE 14: CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Rs. in Lacs

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
14.1 Cash and cash equivalents*
Balanees with banks
Chn current accounts = 995.08 903.03
Deposies with ovgnal matursty of less than three months - 19.51 29.50
Cash on hand - 2,92 6.76
TOTAL (A) - - 1,017.51 941.89
14.2 Other bank balances
Balances with hanks =
Ferm Deposies with marunte of more than three months but less than i 137340 1821
twelve imonths
Term Dieposits with maturiy of more than twelve months 267.00 -
TOTAL (B) 267.00 - 1,373.49 18.21
TOTAL A+ DB) 267.00 - 2,391.01 960.10
* The above are considered as Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Statement of Cash flows
NOTE 15: SHARE CAPITAL Rs. in Lacs
As at As at

March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018

Authorized capital
50,00.000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach
(Y. 50.00.000 Equity Shaves of Rs. 10 each)
TOTAL
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
43.00.700 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach fully pawd up m cash

PALA5.00.700 Fquity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully pasd up m cash)

TOTAL

500,00 300,00
500.00 500.00
430.07 450,07
450.07 450.07

a. Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity Shares

As at March 31, 2019 As at 31.03.2018
No. of Shares Rs. in Lacs No. of Shares Rs. in Lacs
A\t the begmning of the year 45.00.700 450.07 45.00.700 450.07
Issued durmg the Year & = G
Outstandig at the end of the year 45,00,700 450.07 45,00,700 450.07
b. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
e Group has only one class of Tiquity Shares having a par value of Rs 10 cach. Holder of each Equity Share i entitled to one vote per share. The Group declares

and pays dividends m Indian vupees. Tnthe event of hquidation of the Group. the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive remaming assets of the Group,

after dismibunon of all preferential amounts. The distabution will be i proportion o the number of equity s

¢. Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% equity shares of the Group

ares held by the shs

reholders.

Name of Shareholders

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

No. of Shares % holding

No. of Shares %o holding

Sheach Developers Pyt Lud

Park Chambers Lid

Merln Projects Ltd

Jugal Kishore Khetawar

I Kishore Khetawat - Trustee of Khetawat Family Welfare Trust
avak Dealers (1) Lud

Pan Fmami Cosmed Lud

450,071 10.00% 0

425,105 9.45%0
390955 8.69"
386,334 8.58"0
3.26,335 7.25%
292,000 6.49%0

5.65%0

10,00 4

043"

390955 869"
386334 838",
3.26.333 7.25%
292,000 649
1225 3.65"

A perrecords of the Groups mcluding its register of sharcholders/members and other declarations received from sharcholders regarding beneficial mterest. the

above shareholdmg vepresents both Iegal and beneficial ownership of shares




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

NOTE 16: OTHER EQUITY

Rs. in Lacs

[ As at As at
| March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Reserves & Surplus
V- Camral veserve fas per the last fimancial statements) 36.38
B. Secuninies premmum aceount (as per the last fmancal statements) 66000 660.00
|f. General reserve (as per the last tmanenl statements 20.000.00) 20.000,00
(1) Other Comprehensive [ncome 113 135.94)
|
|| Reramed Farnmes (movements given below) 10,649.56 4.886.40
% Total - Other equity 31,198.43 25,446.90
L

Movement in Retained Earnings
Rs. in Lacs

As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Opening Balance 646 T.689.18
Add: Profir for the vear 3.763.39 263.11
Add: Dividend and Related taxes (0.29) 2085.01)
Add: Other Adpistments - (80.22)
Closing Balance 10,649.57 4,886.46

Capital Reserve- The acquisinon of an addinonal ownership mterest m a subsidiary wathout a change of control 15 accounted for as an cquity fransaction
accordance with Tnd AN 110 Any excess or deficit of far value of consideranon pad over the carrymg amount of the non-controlling mterests 1s recogmsed i equity

ol the parent m ransacions where the non-controlling mterests are acquired or sold without loss of control. The Group has elected to recogmise this effect m the

capital reserve

Securities Premium Account- Prennum recetved on equity shares issued are recognised i the seeurities premium account.

General Reserve - Under the erstwhile Tndian Companies Act 1956, a general reserve was ereated through an annual transter of net income at a speeified percentage
maccordance with apphicable regulanons, to ensure that if a dividend distribution m a given year is more than 10% of the pad captal of the Group for that vear. the
total dividend distribution s less than the toral distrbutable vesults for that year, Consequent to mtroduction of Compantes Act 2013, the requirement to

heen withdrawn.

mandatorily tansfee a specitied percentage of the net profit to general reserve |

Retained Earnings - Retimed earnmgs meludes surplus m the Statement of Profic and Loss, Ind-AS related adjustments as on the date of transition,
remeasurenient gans/ losses on defined benefic obhgations

FVTOCI Reserve - Net gan/(loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit lability comprising of acturial gain and losses and return on plan assets (excluding

MICTCSt mncome.

NOTE 17 : BORROWINGS
Rs. in Lacs

Non-current

As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Term loans

from banks (Refer note 17.1) 38.756.27 20.803.83
Long Term Matntes of Finanee Lease Obligauons (Refer note 17.1) Wiy 17.28
Unsecured

Term loans

from related parties (Refer note 20.3) 1.243.81 082,96

TOTAL 60,011.85 27,804.09

Borrowing included in Other Financial Liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Secured
Term loans
tfrom banks (Refer nore 17.1) 214893 13927.87

Finance Lease Obligations 551 5.07

TOTAL 2,154.44 13,932.93




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Terms & Conditions

Current
Bank from

Portion of
whom Loan

—— Loan as on
“ 31.03.2019

Rs in Lacs

(2) Term Loans From Banks

Kotak Bank 3469
Axis Bank 124141
s Bank

Yes Bank SU0,00
Standard
Chartered 12,83
Bank
Standard
Clidtiere

“hartered 134239

Bank,

Colombo

Standard

Chartered
Bank, UK

Axis Bank led,

; 804033
Hong Kong '

Standard
Chartered
Bank,

Colombe

Axis Bank led,
ITong Kong

TOTAL (a) 33,440.76

Current
Portion of
Loan as on
31.03.2018

Rs in Lacs

71294

778043

543448

9,340,060

1299422

29.90

51,792.05

‘(b) Finance Lease Obligations

DI Bank

Tovoia

I'nanenl

TOTAL (b)

398
100

5.07

Non Current  Non Current
Interest

(p-a. basis)

Poruon of Portion of
Installment Amount

Loan as on
31.03.2018

Loan as on
31.03.2019
RS in Lacs Rs in Lacs Rs in Lacs

72 equal monthly

mstallment of 78.92

3,726.78 4269.56  6M KMCILR

(inclusive of interest

amount)

1Y MCLR +

.33

29 ot -
3277730 132 structured
: monthly mstallment

| S

3M MCILR
plus 1.20"

34 structured

9,700.00 3
quarterly installment

OM MCLR

132 structured

1,403.75 6N MCLR
monthly installment
Imonth
1,677.98 LIBOR +1.0

"o per annum

| 1month

[LIBOR +10

" per annum

947043

1 month
LIBOR+2.85

Yo per annum

Imonth
LIBOR +0.9
"o per annum

3 month
| LIBOR+5.5

"4 per annum

58,756.26 4,269.56

7.68 1242 9.45" 044+
+09 5.26 75000
11.77 17.28

Security Provided to avail Loan

1) Ground Iloor to  13th floor of South Cuy "Pmnacle”
situated at Plot No. X1-1, Block 121, Sceror 'V, Salr Lake, Kolkata -

700 091,
1) First Par-passu charge over entire Property assets including the

| Property land, busldings and any other moveable and mmoveable

assets of the Property with a nunmum secunty cover of 1.50x

2) First Part Passu charge over Property Colleenons generated
(from the Property which will be deposited 1 the Designared Bank
[Account.

3) Charge over bank accounts of the Borrower meluding

| Designated Bank Account, Current Account and ISRA Account,

1) Faest part passu charge by way of Lquitable Mortgage over the
property, to be shared only with the SBLC/TL. facihues already

avaled from Axis Bank Lid.

-2) Fiest pars passu charge over the cash flows of the Mall,

1) Exclusive charge over ennre project land, Building of South

Caty Mall. Pixclusive charge on the land of Banaly, Kolkata.

Lixclusive charge on the land of Dankuni, Kolkata.

1) First part passu charge by way of Pguitable Mortgage over the

Pas B Dy | HeH
property, to be shared only with the SBLC/TLL facihnes already
avaled from Axis Bank Led.

12) First part passu charge over the cash flows of the Mall.

Dollar term Loan from Standard Chartered  Bank, Colombo

amounting to USD 432 milhion, at the rate Tmonth LIBOR i].ll‘

Yo per annum secured by guarantee provided  byoaes ulimate

parent company South eity projects (Kolkata) Lid and 1ts parent
company AA Infraproperties Pyt Lad and Mr. Jardeep [Halwasiva(

Director)(that the loan will be pavable on demand)

[Dollar term Loan from Standard Chartered Bank, UK amountng

to USD 2438 mullion, at the vate Tmonth LIBOR +1.0 "o per
annum  sccured by guarantee provided by s ulomate parent
[company South city projects (Kolkata) Ltd and its parent company

AA - Infraproperties Pyt lad and Mro Jadeep Talwasiva(

Director)(thar the loan will be pavable on demand).
Dollar term Loan from Axis Bank lid, [Tong Kong amounting to

USD 145 million, at the rate of | month LIBOR+2.85 "o per
annum  secured by guarantee provided by s ulnmate parent
company South city projects (Kolkata) Led and its parent company

AA - Infraproperties Pve ld and Mro Jadeep  Talwasiya(

Director)(that the Toan will be pavable on demand)

Dollar term Loan from Standard Chartered  Bank, Colombo

amounting to USDD 20,5 nullion, ar the rate Imonth LIBOR +0.9
Y per annum  secured by guaraniee provided byoats ulumare
parent company South ety projects (Kolkata) Lad and s parent

[company AN Infraproperties Py Lad and My Jasdeep alwasiya(

Director)(that the loan will be pavable on demand).
Dollar term Loan from Axis Bank Itd, [Hong Kong amounting

[toUSD 23.3 million, at the vare of 3 month LIBOR+5.5 " per
|

annum  secured by mmmovable assets of the company and
guarantee provided by ats ulimate parent company South ety

(projects (Kolkata) Ltd and 1ts parent company AA Infraproperties

Pyt Lid(that the loan will be pavable on demand).

|Hypothecation of Creta & Polo Vehiele,




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

NOTIE 18 : TRADE PAYABLES
Rs. in Lacs

Current

As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Trade Payabies :

Lotl oustandmg dues of Niero & Small Enterprises (See Note 38) 16.01 -
Lotal ourstandmg dues o ereditors other than Micro & Small Lnrerprises 460078 (.821.31
|
[ Total Trade Payables 4,616.79 6,821.31
!

NOTE 19: PROVISION
Rs. in Lacs

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (Refer Nore 37) 160.35 124.25 48,57 3778
Leave encashment (Refer Nowe 37 119.07 4165 293 34l
Total 279.43 265.90 78.50 72.19
NOTE 20 : BORROWINGS Rs. in Lacs
Current
As at As at

March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Secured

Loan from Other Pavties (Refer Note 20.1) 15.600.00 14.700.00
Bank Overdraft (Refer Note 20.2) 9.026:17 8A3443
Term Loan from Bank 329184 13.329.90

Unsecured

Irrom Related Parties and Bodies Corporates (vefer note 20.3) 6.940.71 1423.13
Temporary Bank Overdraft 6.23 4.165.37
TOTAL 62,864.95 47,052.82

2001 Loan from other Parties are seeured agamst pledge of Investments in Mutual funds

Particulars As at o
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Amount Rate of Interest Amount Rate of Interest
Payable by Apnl 2018 2.000.00
Payable by May 2018 3.000.00
Payable by June 2018 3.700.00
Payable by July 2018 +00o.00
Payable by Apr 2019 1.300.00 8.65"
Payable by NMay 2019 4.700.00 8.63"4
Payable by June 2019 3.600.00 8.65"
Payable by Sept 2019 -4.000.00 8.55%
20.2- Loan from related parnes i< repavable on demand and carry mterest @ 15"
NOTIE 21: OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Rs. in Lacs
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Current matuntes of long-term borrowmgs (Note 17) - . 2.148.93
Current maturities of Inance Lease Obligatons (Note 17) - 351
Securny deposits reeeived & 331957 682.83 2.837.87
Retension 75244 - 794.20
Other Fiancil Liabilines 0.-40 (.40 1.124.33 4.803.11
Interest Payable o Director - - 8542
Intevest Payable o Subsidiary - - 198
Interest acerued and due on borrowmgs E = 168415 21469
Interest acerued and not due on borrowings - 452.72 8.38
3% Redeemable Non-Cumulaiive Non- convertible Preference Shares - 375.00
Vdvanee from Related party < 317.62
Amonnt pavable to Contractors R R 2.631.09
TOTAL 752.83 3,694.97 9,929.37 21,796.98




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

NOTE 22: OTHER LIABILITIES

Rs. in Lacs

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31,2018 | March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Secursty Deposit Receved 6,027.13 20744
Contract Labihrye - 74.387.91 65991.50
Jome Development Advance from Related Parties - [Holding Company - 117
Statutory dues - 1.519.67 1.390.57
Onher Current Labilines 0.32 1.26 1.26
TOTAL 6,027.45 - 76,617.45 67,383.33
NOTE 23 : DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / (LIABILITIES)
Rs. in Lacs
Balance Sheet
As at As at

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Deferred tax liabilities

Fair valuanon of Mutual Funds 1.780.97 1.956.55
e valuation of Equity Shares 3838 21.60
e valuation of Investment Property 10.81
\mornsaton of Uptront fees on Loans - (.22
1,830.16 1,978.37
Deferred Tax Assets
Tax mpact due o difference: between tax depreciation and book depreeation 37.16
Provision for Gratuty 51.24
Provision for Leave Fneashment 59.59
Orthers through OC]
Lax mpact due to Profit chminanon m Consolidanon 151.95
Mumepal Tax 37331 389.52
Fachange difference due 1o transhinon of Foreign Operation 85.63
494.02 1,075.09
Net Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities 1,336.14 903.28
Disclosed as follows:
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 3.15 5.36
Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities 1,339.28 908.65
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 are:
Statement of profit and loss:
Profit or loss section
2018-19 2017-18
Current income tax:
Current meome tax charge 1.939.60 64842
\dustments i respeet of current mcome fax of previous year 60.26 49.99
Deferred tax:
Relanng to ongmanon and reversal of temporary differences 11614y 70.20
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 1,883.71 768.61
OCI section
Deterred tax related to nems recognised m OCH durmg m the vear: 2018-19 2017-18
Remeasurement of Defined Benefir Plans 1.92 2440
Income tax charged to OCI 4.92 2.40
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for
2018-19 2017-18
Vecountig profit betore tax from continuing operations 728100 821.13
Mrofie, loss) betfore ax fron a discontinued operation -
Accounting profit before income tax 7,281.00 821.13
M Indis strutory meome tas vate of 3940 (31 March 2018: 31608 © o) 254427 284018
Income exempt from meome taxes (T19.41) GI-L80)
Vddinonal allowances 7 deduetnon AL 10 G190
Lffeet of Protit chargeable at different rate 23787 389,93
Impact due o different head of meome 913.99 197 44
Permanent differences 119.92 78.89
Deferred Tax Asset not recogmsed mabsence of resonable certainty 22012 35075
of s realisation
Dieferred Tax 116.-43) 70,20
At the effective income tax rate of 27.93% (31 March 2018: o i
ol 1823445 18.62
Income s expense reported m the statement of profit and loss 1.823.45 T18.62




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

NOTE 24: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Rs. in Lacs

|

2018-19 2017-18
Operaung Revenue
Saie of Products
Revenue trom Land & Construered Properties 206147 +.727.90
10.80 3.09

Revenue trom Sale of 1.PG Gas
Sale of Services

Rental Income

Mamrenance Services
Other Operating Revenue

Others

TOTAL

409657

151493
21.24 64.05
15,924.87 10,406.54

NOTE 25: OTHER INCOME

Rs. in Lacs

2018-19 2017-18

Inierest meome 2.987.335 724.63
Interest lncome on Loan to Subsidiary 201.82

Divrdend Income on Investmentst 991 1.5
Net Gam on Sale of Investments 2955 425
Net toreign exchange gain 36148 143.76
Inrerest- sale of Land 1.831.19
law value change of Investments measured ac FVTPLL 2052:11 271106
Miseellancous Tncome 33345 10102

Total

6,175.87

5,587.45

* From Subsidiary Company Rs. 8.75 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 8.75 Lacs)

NOTE 26 : CONSTRUCTION COSTS

Rs. in Lacs

2018-19 2017-18
Salaries. Wages & Bonus 130.82 143.15
Contribution to Provident & Ocher Funds 3.69 6.18
Sttt Weltare lixpenses 0.02 0.36
Power & luel 61.05 23.04
Repars
Orthers RURY 2279
Insurance +.34 7.10
Rates & Taxes 1.18 19.39
Pand 217402 13.71
\aterals Consumed O18.10 560.93
Construction Expenses 1397611 57497
Other Operatng Fxpenses 182.25 149.83
Consultaney & Retamerslup Charges 33.06 47.91
Fmance Costs & Other Borrowmg Costs 1.264.15 37.35
TOTAL 48,872.98 26,216.71

NOTE 27 : Changes in Inventories

Rs. in Lacs

2018-19

2017-18

Inventories at the end of the year:
Fimshed Goods
Constructnion work m Progress
Land
Ovthers
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
[mshed Goods

Construction work i Progress

Land

Others
Less: Transinonal mput eredic under GST
Lesst Transterved 1o Fised Assers

Lesss Adpustment due to translaton

Increase/ (Decrease) in Inventories

105591

472704
143.063.34

(6.383.68)
150993

(10155632

290.28

6,383.68

1.509.93
88.865.02

(2593.40)

GAAT.T
GRGLLAG)
24.13

17.54

22,147.67




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

NOTE 28 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Rs. in Lacs

2018-19 2017-18
Salaries. Wages and Bonus 68378 703,90
Contmbunon to Provident and Others Funds (Reter Now 37) 36.12 HLO8
Statt Welfare Fxpenses 1246 9.70
TOTAL 734.37 757.58
NOTE 29: DEPRECIATION
Rs. in Lacs
2018-19 2017-18
Deprecianon on Tangible assets (Note 11 L4345 1.080.45
Deprecation on Investment Property (Note 4.2 0.03 -
\mortisation of Intangible Assets (Note 4.4) 841 8.54
Total 1,442.89 1,088.99
NOTE 30: FINANCE COSTS
Rs. in Lacs
2018-19 2017-18
Interest expenses 292415 3 THAT
Net Forem Fxchange Loss 964.20 -
Other Borrowing Coses 22014 +.21
Total 4,108.49 3,748.68
NOTE 31: OTHLER EXPENSES
Rs. in Lacs
2018-19 2017-18
Power & Fuel 91T 624.38
Repares
Buildng 38.08 10.79
Others 207.04 120.18
Mamtenance HTA3 3152
House Keepmyg Charges 333.21 230,54
Seeurny Charges 262.74 21752
Insurance 5248 30.60
Rates & Taxes 1.221.61 L718.04
Legal & Profession Charges 46,16 24277
Dirceror’s Remuneration 3250 33.00
CSR Lxpenses (Refer Note 31.2) 57169 223.83
Loss on diseard of Fixed Assets 0.90 861.91
Aiscellaneous xpenses 74162 850.54
Total 4,754.79 5,505.62
Note 31.1- Auditor's Remuneration
Rs. in Lacs
2018-19 2017-18
As Auditor:
Audit fees 11.21 10.58
Tax Audit tee 0.69 0.61
Other Mattors 0.05 1.99
Total 11.95 13.18
Note 31.2- Details of CSR Expenditure
Corporate Socul responsibiliy expensed Rs. 57.69 Lacs (2017-18: Rs. 223,83 lacs)
Rs. in Lacs
2018-19 2017-18
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year 115.69 142.36
115.69 142.36
b) Amount spent during the year:
Construction” acquisition of an asset -
Purposes other than above 57.09 223.83
Total 223.83




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

32 Busis for calculation of Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share is as under:

Bastc EPS amounts are calculared by dividing the profit for the vear ateributable to Fquity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of Lquity

Shares outstanding during the vear.

Dilured 1:PS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to Equity holders of the Parent Company by the Weighted average number of iquity shares
g 1 jutty Y Y & 4 JLILY

ourstanding during the vear plus the wetghted average number of Liquity shares that would be tssued on conversion of all the dilutive porential equiry shares into equity

shares.

Rs. in Lacs

—

2018-19 2017-18
Profit atrriburable ro cquity holders of the parent for basie carnings 5,763.39 263.11
Wetghred average number of cquiry shares tor basice 11PS 45,00,700 45,00,700
Nominal value of equity per share (Rs.) 10 10
larnings per Share - Basic & Dilured (Rs,) 128.06 5.85
33 Commitment and Contingencies

a. Commitments

Rs. in Lacs

icul As at As at
Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018

Istimated amount of contracts remaining ro be exceuted on Capital \ecount(net of capital advance) 2,696.57 1,184.52
Contingent liabilities -

Rs. in Lacs

Particular As at -As at
articulars
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Outstanding Bank guarantees and leteers of credir 655.7+4 704.58
Disputed demands
(a) Limployees State Insurance Demands (Ner of Advances) 9.62 9.62
(L, Service Tax 990.06 1,001.45
(¢) Income Tax 809.67 1,272.05
(d) Others - 91.39
Total 2,465.09 3,079.09

34 Leases
Operating lease — Group as lessor

The Parent Company has given Mall premises and U Park on operating lease to- lessee. The Company enters into 3 - 15 years cancellable lease agreements. Minimum

lease payments receivable in respect of these leases for non-caneellable period are as follows-

JMinimum Lease Payments 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

“ithin one vear 9,015.53 6,248.52
I.\['n:r one vear but not more than five years 9,356.92 10,288.34
IIOtal Minimum Lease Payments 18,372.45 16,536.86




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

32 Basis for calculation of Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share 1s as under:

Basic 15PS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year atrributable to Fquity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of Equity

Shares outstanding during the vear.

Diluted IXPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit attributable to liquity holders of the Parent Company by the Weighted average number of Fguity shares

outstanding during the vear plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity

shares

Rs. in Lacs

larnings per Share - Basic & Dilured (Rs.)

2018-19 2017-18 -
Profic atmriburable to cquire holders of the parent for basic earnings 5,763.39 263.11
Werghted average number of equity shares for baste 11PS 45,00,700 45,00,700
Nominal valuc of equity per share (Rs.) 10 10
128.06 5.85

33 Commitment and Contingencies

a. Commitments

Rs. in Lacs

Particul As at As at

; ulars

ZESaty March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
listmated amount of contracrs remaining to be exceuted on Capital Account(net of capital advance) 2.696.57 1,184.52

". Contingent liabilities -

Rs. in Lacs

Particular As at As at
articulars
= March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018

Outstanding Bank guarantees and letrers of eredit 655.74 704.58

Dispured demands ’

(a) Employees State Insurance Demands (Ner of \dvances) 962 9.62

(b) Serviee Tax 990.06 1,001.45

(¢) Income Tax 809.67 1,272.05

(d) Others - 91.39
Total 2,465.09 3,079.09

34 Leases
Operating lease — Group as lessor

The Parent Company has given Mall premises and I Park on operating lease to lessee. The Company enters into 3 - 15 years

lease payments receivable in respect of these leases for non-cancellable period are as follows-

cancellable lease agreements. Ninimum

Minimum Lease Payments 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
“Sithin onc vear 9,015.53 6,248.52
= vfrer one year but not more than five years 9,356.92 10,288.34
IToml Minimum Lease Payments 18,372.45 16,536.86
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Note 35.1 - Financial Assets

Financial Assets - Non Current
At Amornsed Cost

(a) Trade Recewvable

(b TLoans

(c) Other financial assers

At air Value through profit or loss

Investments

Total Non Current Financial Assets (a)

Financial Assets - Current

At Amortised cost

(a) Trade Reccivables

(b) Cash and Cash Lquivalents

(c) Bank Balances other than (b) above
(d) Loans

(¢) Other Iinancial Assets

At Fair Value through profit or loss

[nvestments

Total Current Financial Assets (b)
Total Financial Assets (a + b)
Note 35.2 - Financial Liabilitics
Financial Liabilities - Non Current
At Amortised Cost

(a) Borrowings

(b) Orther Financial Liabilities

Total Non Current Financial Liabilities (a)

Financial Liabilities - Current
At Amortised Cost

(a) Borrowings

(b) Trade payables

(¢) Other inancial Liabilities

Total Current Financial Liabilities (b)

Total Financial Liabilitics (a + b)

Rs. in Lacs

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018
273.49 211.09
580.39 879.19
1,223.64 1,699.74
2,077.52 2,790.02
43,169.12 41,119.41
45,246.64 43,909.43
1,224.77 1,156.25
1.017:51 941.89
1,373.49 18.21
5,106.72 3,814.92
4,073.61 90.65
12,796.10 6,021.91
153.49 105.14
12,949.60 6,127.04
58,196.23 50,036.47
60,011.85 27,804.09
752.83 3,694.97
60,764.68 31,499.06
62,864.95 47,052.82
4,616.79 0,821.31
9,929.37 21,796.98
77,411.10 75,671.11
1,38,175.78 1,07,170.17
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Note 36 - Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's Consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimares and assumprions thar affect

ssets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent labilities.

the reported amounts of revenues, expense
Uncerramn abour these assumprions and estimates could result in outcomes thar require a matertal adjustment to the carrving amount of asscts or

habilities affeered i future periods.

Judgements, Estimates and assumptions

stimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of

I'he key assumprions concerning the future and other key sources of
causing a material adjustment ro rhe carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based
its assumprions and estimates on parameters available when the inancial Statements were prepared. xisting circumstances and assumptions about
furure developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such
changes are reflecred m the assumptions when they oceur. In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, estmares and assumptions, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the inancial Statements.

Defined Employer Benefit plans

The cost and the present value of the defined benefir gratuity plan and other post-employment leave encashment benefit are determined using
actuarial valuanions, An acruarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future. These include
the determination of appropriate discount rate, estimating future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the

valuation and irs long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at

cach reporting date. For further details refer Note 37.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments and guarantees

When the faie values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value 1s measured using valuation techniques including the DCIF model. The inputs to these models are taken from obscrvable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement 1s required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of mnputs such as hquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair

value of financial msrruments.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in respeet of periodic depreciation is
derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and
restdual values of Group's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at cach
financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their

life, such as changes in technology.

Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with the applicable Ind AS. \ provision is
recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
thar an outflow of cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows. The Group has significant capital commitments in relation to various capital projects

which are nor recognized on the balance shecet.

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilitics may arise from litigation and other claims against the Group. Guarantees are also provided
in the normal course of business. There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances,
are not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in the
notes but are not reflecred as liabilities in the financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal
proceedings in which the Group involved, it is not expected that such contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or
profitability.

Classification of leases
tfication of the leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is

The Group enters info leasing arrangements for various asscts. The clas

based on an assessment of several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset ar end of lease term, lessee’s option to
o

purchase and estimated certainty of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset’s cconomic life, proportion of present value of

minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased assct.
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37 Employee Benefit Obligation
(a) Defined Benefit Plan

The tollowmg tables summaries the components of net benefie expenses recognized - the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss and OCT 4

imounts recognized methe balance sheet:

Rs. in Lacs

i Particulars

Gratuity Unfunded

Leave Encashment Unfunded

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at year beginning 143.35 92.71 176.06 6249
Current Serviee Cost 17.8% 14.72 19.76 23.12
Interest Cost 10.90 6.77 13.39 436
Past Service Cost 23.32 =
Remeasurements (gms fosses

veruarial g losses ansimg from changes m demographic assumpuons - -

\etuaral fgins) Josses ansng from changes mtmancal assumptions 145 (2.89) 1.35 (3:17)

Vetuaral (gams)losses ansmg from changes i experience adjustments 1278 9.95 7.33 97.63
Benefus Paxd (3.77) (1.23) (79.08) (6.50
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at year end 180.59 143.35 149.00 176.09

Gratuity Unfunded

Leave Encashment Unfunded

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Amounts Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Significant Actuarial Assumptions

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2019

Present value of detined benefit obligation ar the vear end 180.59 143.35 149.00 176.09
Fair Value of the Plin \ssets at the year end - -
Liability/(Asset) Recognised in the Balance Sheet 180.59 143.35 149.00 176.09
Gratuity Unfunded Leave Encashment Unfunded
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Current Service Cost 17.88 7. 19.76 23.12
Past Service Cost = 23.32
Remeasurements for Aetaral (gams)/losses; ansmg, from :
= Changes m fimanenl assomptions 1.36 1.35 (3.17)

Lxperence vanence fee Nemual experience v assumptions) 17.33 97.65
Net Interest Cost/(Income 10.90 6.77 13.39 +.56
Net Cost Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 30.14 44.81 52.02 120.16
Expense recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income:
Remeasurements (gams)/losses 14.22 7.06 -
Net Cost Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 14.22 7.06 - ~
(i) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Group's plans are shown below

As at As at As at As at

March 31, 2018

Financial Assumption

Discount rate 7.50% T.60% 7500 T.60"a

Salary Growth Rate (") 8% 8% 8y 8

Demographic Assumptions :

Normal Retwement Age (vrs. 58 38 38 38

Mortahry Rate o ot LAXLNLOG-08 100 100 100" 100"«
2% 2% 2y 29

Avrnon Rates, based on age

The esumates of futare salary meveases considered m actuarial valuanon, ke account of nflaton, seniority, promotion and other relevane factors, such as supply and demand m the employment

marker.

Assumpnons regardimg tuture mortality experienc

Ihe discount rare s based on the government seeurnties vield.

The Group assesses these assumpnions with ats projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent mdustry standards.

are set m accordance with the pubhshed stansties by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.




3

%

(11) A quanutative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption 1s as shown below

Gratuity
As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
Deerease _ Increase Decrease Increase
Uiscount Rare v |0y 195.86 6Ty 156,12 13241
“ochange compared 1o base due ton sensitvan B.46% -7.26% 0.09 -0.08
Satary Growrh Race + 1% 170113 | 190.71 135.08 152.60
Swchange compared 1o base due 1o sensioviny -5.16% 5507, -0.07 0.08
Vemton Rare <3N 17843 18247 14185 14-H.60
tochange compared o base due to sensiony -1.17%, LO2% 0,02 0.01
Moraliny Rae =+ 107 180,19 18098 143.04 143,64
cehange compared o base doe o sensinvany 0.22%%] _ 022% -0.00 (.00
- ~ Leave Encashment
As at 31.03.2019 - As at 31.03.2018
Decrease \ Increase . Decrease Increase
Discount Rate U A 163.37 13676 69.32 56.73
Y change compared 1o base due to sensivany 9.65%0 - -8.23"%, 10.29%0 8.68% 0
e Growth Rate -+ 1" 135.93 - 16411 36.81 69.09
" change compared 1o base due o sensinviry 877", 10.14% S804 TO.O4Y 0
\rinon Rate 300" 14948 | I S E T 6281 62.19
"uchange compared 1o base due o sensitvaty 0.39°0] -0.35% -0.85" 0.76% .
ANMorrahty Rare | + 10" 149.08 - 148.93 6233 6242
“wchange compared 1o base due o sensinvin 0.06% -6t 013 0.137 0

Sensivaty for sigmiticant actuaril assumptions s computed by varying one actuarial o
actnaral assumptions constant. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitvity anal

(iii) Risk Exposure

sumprion used for the valuation of the defined benelit obligation by one pereentage, keeping all other
s did not change compared to the prior period.

Valuations are performed on certam basie set of pre-determmed assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary overtime. Thus. the Group s exposed to various risks m providing
the above grannty benefit which are as follows

Interest Rate risk : ITic plan exposes the Group to the risk of fall m meerest rates. A fall m mterest rates will result m an increase m the ultimate cost of providng the above benetit and will
thus result m an merease m the value of the hability (as shown m financial statements). ‘ )
Liquidity Risk : Tl 1s the risk that the Group s not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non-availability of enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the abilines
or holding of lliquid assers not bemg sold in tine.

Salary Escalation Risk : The present value of the defined benefir plan s ealeulated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants m future, Deviaton mthe vate of merease of

salary m future for plan parnapants from the rate of werease i salary used to determme the preseat value of obligation will have a bearmg on the plan's habiiy.

Demographic Risk : I'he Group has used eertam mortality and attntion assumptions m valuation of the liabihry. The Group is exposed to the nisk of actual expenence turning out to be worse

ct l|l|IYy"'L'L[ to the i|\‘\||np“l .
Regulatory Risk : (;

wity benelits pad n

¢

requiring hagher gratnty pavouts (e.g Inerease i the maximum limit on gratuity of Rs. 20,00.000).

here are Nhero, Small and - Medm Eoterprisesto whom the Group owes dues which are outstanding for more than 45 days durng the year. This mformation as
diselosed under the Micro, Small and Medim Enterprise: Development Aet, 2006 as been determined o the extent such parties have been identified on the basis

avatlable with the group.

cordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Aer . 1972(as amended from nme to tme). There s a visk of change m regulations

required to be

of mformation
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39 Fair Value Hierarchy

The table shown below analyses financial mstruments carried at fatr value. The different levels have been defined below:-
Level 1: Quoted Prices (unadjusted) m active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2t Inputs other than quoted prices meluded within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, cither directly (.e., as prices) or indireetly (Le., denved from
prices)

Level 3z Inputs for the asset or labiline that are not based on observable marker data (unobservable mnputs)

4 Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value at 31 March 2019

Rs. i Lacs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Investment at FVTPL
In Quared Unirs of Mutual Fund 42.903.01 = - 42,903.01
In Quoted liguiy Shares 136.35 - 136.35
In Quoted Shares through PMS Pool Necount 129.73 - 129.73
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value at 31 March 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Investment at FVTPL
In Quoted Units of Mutual Fund 40,914.21 - - 40,914.21
In Quored Fquity Shares 88.31 - - 88.31
In Quored Shares through PMS Pool Aecount 116.89 - - 116.89

(b} Financial instruments at ammortized cost

I'he carrving amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of ther fair values

since the Group does not anticipaie thar the earrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled

{c1 Durng the vear there has been no wansfer from one level to another
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RELATED PARTIES

(a) Partculars of Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Parent and Subsidiary Companies:

Name of related parties Nature of relationship % of Holding

South Cirv International School Subsidiary 51.50%

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Joint Venture of the Group .
Name of related parties Nature of relationship % of Holding
Kolkara Merropolitan South City Development Ltd. Joint Venture of the Company 49.97%

Key Management Personnel

Name of related parties Nature of relationship
Shri Pradeep Kumar Surcka Non - lixceutive Director
Shri Ragendra Kumar Bachhawar Non - lixccutive Director
Shri Ravi Todi Non - Iixecutive Director
Shri Sushil Kumar Mohta Non - [ixccutive Director
Shri Hart Mohan Marda Independent Director
Shri Ram Krishna \garwal Independent Director
Shri Jugal Kishore Khetawat Non - Fixecutive Director
Shri Parimal \jmera Company Sccretary

Shri Nikhil Chandra Das Vice President - Projects
Shri Man Mohan Bagree Viee President

Entities where Key Management Personnel & their relatives have significant influence with whom transactions have taken place during

the year

South City Belair Property Management Privare Lid.
Khetawat Family Welfare Trust

Khetawat Properties Led.

South Cirv: \nmol Infra Park 11,1

Grroove Traders Py Lrd.

Merlin Projects rd.

Anmol Agrotarm 11D

Anumatt Consultancy & Services () Led.

Delta Nirman 1112

Jvotim Constructions 111

Monarch Shelter Pyt .ed.
SK.Gland Developers LLP
Shangrila Commercial Co 11D
A Synergy DMCC




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

D. Transactions

Particulars

WSitting Fees

Remuneration & Commission
ﬁeﬁdering of Services
Loan Given

Loan Received

Advances Given

‘Advances for Property Evclopme;lt

Z\&vances received for sale of Flat
Recovery of Electric & Other Charges

é - Investmegt
C-Loan Received

Joint Venture

31.03.19

Subsidiaries
31.03.19 31.03.18
- 3.60 3.60
32000 44500
5.30 0.16
1.53 1.53

31.03.18

Personnel
31.0319  31.03.18
2.50 3.00
15962 147.84
252800  1,198.00
25.42 17.11

Key Management

Entities where Key
Management
Personnel and their
relatives have
significant influence

31.03.19

2,843.03

31.03.18

38.97

050

231.90
0.24

1,013.13

Rs in Lakhs
Total
31.03.19  31.03.18

2.50 3.00
159.62 147.84
3.60 3.60
320.00 445,00
5371.03  1,236.97
3073 17.27
- 0.50

. 231.90

0.22 024

1.53 1.53
1,075.30  1,113.13
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41 Financial risk management objectives and policies

Phe Group's prnepal financaal labilines, other than dervatives, compnse loans and borrowmgs, trade and other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The mam purpose of
these financial abilines s 1o finance the Group's operatons and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Group’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other

recervables, and cash and cash equivalents that derve directly from irs operations.

s. The Group’s sentor management is

s the management of these risk

I'he Group s exposed to market sk, eredit r nd liquidity nisk. The Group's sentor management over:

supparted by a financul risk commuttee that advases on financial nisks and the appropnate financial risk governance framework for the Group. The financial nisk committee provides

assurance to the Group’s semor management that the Group’s finaneal risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are dentified,

measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives. All dervative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specilist teams that

have the appropriate skills, expenence and supervision. It is the Group’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing cach of these risks, which are summarised below.

A. Credit Risk

Credit rishoas the sk thar a counterparty fails o dhscharge its obligation to the Group.
The Group's exposure 1o eredit sk 15 mfluenced mamly by cash and cash equivalents, trade recervables and financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The group contmuoush monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and mcorporates thi mformation mnto tts credit nisk controls. Credit nsk related 1o cash and cash

cquvalents and bank deposits s managed by only accepting hghly rated banks and diversifying bank deposits. Other financial assets measured at amortized cost ncludes sceurity
deposits, Lomns gven and others: Credit nsk related o these other finaneal assers 1s managed by monttoning the recoverablity of such amounts contnuously, while at the same time

mternal control system m place ensure the amounts are withim defined lits.
a) Credit Risk Management

L. Credit Risk Rating
The Group assesses and manages eredit nisk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial

assets.
AL Low Credit Risk
B. Moderate Credit msk

C. Thgh eredit nsk

Asset Group Description

. L Cash and cash cquivalents, other bank balances, investments and
Low Credit Risk =
other financial asscts

Maoderate Credir Risk Current T'rade recervables and Sccured loans
igh Credit Risk Non Trade recervables and Unsceured loans
“Based on business enviconment i which the Group operates, a default on a financial asset 15 considered when the counterparty fails to make payments within the agreed time

period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual eredit loss experience and considering differences between current and historical ecconomic conditions.

Assers are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptey or a litigation decided against the Group. The Group continues to

engage with parties whose balances arce written off and attempts to enforee repayment. Recoveries made are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Rs. in Lacs

Credit Rating Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
. Cash and cash cquivalents, other bank balances, investments and —_—
Low Credit Ris e 51,279.40 43,976.56
other financial asscts
NModerate Credit Risk Current T'rade recenvables and Secured loans 1,280.49 1,164.30
’legh Credit Ry Non T'rade recervables and Unsecured loans 5,904.88 3,748.95
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B. Liquidity Risk

Paquidity risk i the msh that the Group will encounter difficulty in meening the obligatons assocrated with its financial liabilities that are settled by deliverng cash or
anorher fmancal assei. The Group’s approach 1o managing hquidity s to ensure as far as possible, thar it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they

e duc

heE

account the hgudite of the market m which the entity operates.

pgement momiors rolling forecasts of the Group’s hiquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group takes into

Maturities of Financial Liabilitics

The rable below analyse the Group's Financial Liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturitics

March 31, 2019 Rs. in lacs
Particulars Less than 1year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 65,019.39 26,980.57 33,031.28 1,25,031.24
‘I'rade Payable 4.616.79 - = 4.616.79
Sceurity deposits 682.83 - - 682.83
Other Fmancial Linbilites 9,929.37 752.83 - 10,682.20
March 31, 2018 -
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 60),985.76 26,225.06 1,579.03 88,789.85
‘T'rade Pavable 6,821.31 - - 6,821.31
Securnity deposits 2,837.87 796.21 2:523.37 6,157.44
Other Mnancial Liabilites 18,959.11 375.40 - 19,334.51

C. Market Risk
a. Interest Rate Risk

The Group has taken debt to finance its working eapital | which exposes it to interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group o interest rate risk.

Interest Rate Rivk Vixpo e

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Variable Rate Borrowing 1,01,246.72 68,683.75
lixed Rate Borrowing 23,784.52 20,106.09

Interest rate sensitivity

Profit or loss and cquity is sensitve to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Interest Sensitivity*

Interest Rates inerease by 100 basis points (1,012.47) (686.84) °
Interest Rates decrease by 100 basis points 1,012.47 686.54

"Holding all other varables constant

Price Risk Sensitivity
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Price Risk Sensitivity*

Price increase by 500 basis points 2,158.45 ) 2,055.97
Price deerease by 500 basis points (2,158.45) (2,055.97)

“Tolding all other variables constant




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

42 Capital management
i*or the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capiral includes issued equity capital, convertible preference shares, sceuritics premium and all
other equity reserves atrriburable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Group’s Capital Management is to maximise the

sharcholder valuc.
I'he Group’s objectives when managing capital is o safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to
support irs business and provide adequate return to sharcholders through continuing growth and maximise the sharcholders value . The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from previous vear IThe Group sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-
term operaring plans which include capiral and other strategic mvestments. The funding requirements are met through a mixturc of cquity internal
fund vencration and borrowed funds.. The Group’s policy is ro use short term and fongterm borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements.
I'he Group monttors capital on the basis of the net debt ro cquity ratio. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
Net debt are Tong term and short term debrs as reduced by cash and cash cquivalents (including restricted cash and cash cquivalents). Fquity

comprises share capital and free reserves (total reserves excluding OCI). The following table summarizes the capital of the Group:

Rs. in lacs

As at As at
March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018

Borrowings 1,25,031.24 88,789.85
Trade payables 4,616.79 6,821.31
Orther linancial Liabilities 10,682.20 25,491.95
Less: Cash and Cash lquivalents i 1,017.51 941.89
lLess: Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Liquivalents 1,640.49 18.21
Net debt 1,37,672.22 1,20,143.02-
Total capital 31,759.63 26,052.91
Capital and net debt 1,69,431.85 1,46,195.92
Gearing ratio 81% 82%
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Note 43 - Segment Informaton

L The Group has disclosed busmess segment as the prmary segment. The Group s collectvely orgamsed into followmg busimess segments namely:

) Real estate projeres © b Rennal \envines

Segnents have been wlennfied as reportable sepments by the Group’s Chiet Operating Decsion Maker (“CODAM
by the Board, which has been wdennfied as the CODAL i deciding how to allocate resources and m assy

sing performance.

Segment profit amounts are evaluated regularly

Segment Revenue, Results, Assets and Luabihities mclude the respective amounts wdennifiable to cach of the segments and amount allocated on a reasonable basis.

Unallocated expenditure consists of common expenditure mcurred for all the segments and expenses meurred at corporate level. The assets and habilities that

cannot be allocated benween the segments are shown as unallocated corporate assets and habihties respectively.

Ihe accountmg pohcies of the reportable seaments are the same as the Grroup accounting pohicies described i Note 2. Segment profit (Farnings betore mrerest,

deprecaton and amortzation, and s amouns ace evaluated regularly by the Board that has been dennfied as s CODN m deciding how to allocate resources

andd i assessim

allocated to operatng segmients,

3. The Grroup Company

actvities are also outside India and henee separate geographical segment disclosure s considered necessary.

serformance. The Group's fuanemg mcludimg tinance costs and fimance meome) and mcome axes are reviewed on an overall basis and are not

1 The et expenses and meome, which are not directly attributable to a particular Business Segment, are shown as unallocated corporate: cost and

meome respectivel .
5. Assets and Labihoes that can not be allocared between the segments are shown as a part of unallocated corporate assets and liabilities respectively.
6. The Group does not have any major customer e, Revenue from transactions wath a smgle external customer does notamount to 10% or more of the ¢ iroup's
Revenue.
The tollowing table presents revenue and profit nformation tor the Group's operating segment for the year ended March 31,2019 and March 31, 2018
Toml B - ~ Rs.in Lacs
Paruculars Real Estate Projects Rental Activities Unallocated Total
2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19  2017-18 _2018-19  2017-18
Revenue | ! - | 1
Tonl Fxternal Revenue 1.950.24 4.864.10 13789.19 5.535.00 155,44 - 1592487 10419.70
Inter Scgment Revenue - - - - - - -
Total Revenue 1,980.24 4,864.10 13,789.19 5,555.60 155.44 - 15,924.87 10,419.70
|Results | B |
Scgment Results (2,691.80) (398.95) U350 8164 15543 - ~ 6YRI3 215.09
Unallocated Corposate Expenses 24161 14434 24161 11434
Operating Profit/(loss) (2,691.80) (598.95) 9,434.50 814.64 (86.18) (144.349)  6,656.52 71.35
Orther Income 317.02 300.63 103.24 | - = L 52418 | 422.26
Unallocated Othier Income ) 1 S 246232 26037] 246232 260037
Interest Income 326,38 1,540.83 1824 20.80 | L 1,4 € 1,861.65
Unallocared Tnterest Income . 349750 69417 | 3497.50 694,17
Financul Lxpenses (2.348.56) 93.07 144622 938.18 B el -902.34 1L,051.25
1(,'mllnc-.ncd lmancul xpenses 4 - - =, ﬁ‘UI(r,h‘_‘v’ 269743 | 5,010.83 2,697.43
| Profit /(loss) Before Tax (587.02) 1,338.49 7,011.05 (968.49) 856.98 | 45113 7,281.01 821.13
Current Tax 1939.60 64842 1,939.60 6842 .
Deferred Tas (116.14) 7020 (16.14) 70.20
Income Tax of Farher Yea ‘ ‘ . 60.26 49.99 | 60.26 49.99
|Net Profit/(loss) alter Tax (587.02) 1,338.49 | 7,011.05 | (968.49) (1,026.73) | (317@)‘1 5,397.28 | 52.52
The tollowmg table presents assets and labilites mtormanon for the Group's operanng segment for the year ended .larch 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018
B - B - ~ Rs.inLacs
Particulars Real Estate Projects | Rental Activities | Unallocated | ‘Total
| 2018-19 2017-18 | 2018-19 201718 201819  2017-18 |  2018-19 J7 2017-18
Segment \ssets 11947297 11149249 09,368.18 10,818.00 \ = | 1,88841.15 1,22,310.58
Unallocated Corporate Assets ) - = S 630THT3 7919986 6517473 79, 199K
Total Assets 1,19,472.97 1,11,492.49 69,368.18 | 10,818.09  65,174.73  79,199.86 2,54,015.88 ~ 2,01,510.44
/ | S— ;
Seement Labilines 13280147 12433804 330397 1081809 . s 13537615
Unallocated Corporate Liabilines E z = - LI 042411 | 16 4042411
Total Liabilities 1,32,801.47 1,24,558.04 38,593.97  10,818.09 51,123.16  40,424.11  2,22,518.60 1,75,800.24
Capual Papenditure Ineurred KI4.09 SAOLSS L7040 TI836 [ 3O8M 1552024
Unallocated Capinal Fxpenditure Incurred 3416 - 316
Deprecmnion and  Amortisation expense 140.96 127.36 1.296.10 | 030.99 5.83 10.64 | 144289 1LO88.99
- I
\s the Group primanly operates w India and theretore the analysis of Geographical segments s demarcared mto ats * idian and overseas operations as under:
Rs. in Lacs
Revenue from Operations
2018-19 2017-18 .

LI ndia

15.924.16

10,406.54

|( verseas

0.71

The followmg rable shows the carrvng amount of segment Non-Current Assets by peographical area to which these

are attributable:

Rs. in Lacs

Carrving Amount of Non Current Assets
Asat 31st Mar 2019 Asat31st Mar 2018
[India 28,275.43 23,500.76
[Ove 19,953.78 158.888.40

Note 44:

All figures are w Rupees Lakhs, Figures marked wath

Note 45: Standards issued but not effective

i oo - - = i 5
On 307 March 2019, Minstry of Corporate Affaies (“MCA”) has notified the IND AS 116,
reamment. Amendment to Ind AS 19 = Plan amendment, curtulment or sertlement The effectiv

*) are below the rounding off norm adopted by the Group.

after 17 Apnl 2009, The company is m the process of evaluatng the effect on s adoption.

\ppendix C of Ind As 12 “Uncertainty over Income ‘Tax
date for adoption of the same is financial periods begmnmg on or
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Group Information
Rs. in Lacs
: ot oy (,)f As at As at
Name incorporation |y rch 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
and operation
SUBSIDIARIES () (%)
South City Projects FZE Dubai 100.00 100.00
Bengal South City Matrix Infrastructure Ltd India 99.65 99.65
Bengal Anmol South City Infrastructure Ltd India 69.65 61.95
South City Property Management Pvt Ltd India 100.00 100.00
South City Developers Pvt Ltd India 100.00 98.00
AA Infraproperties Pvt Ltd India 87.50 87.50
South City Retreat Property Management Pvt Ltd India 100.00 100.00
Indocean Developers Private Limited Sti Lanka 87.50 87.50
AA Infra (Middle East) Ltd. Middle East 87.50 87.50
AN Infra properties (Jafza) Lid Middle East 87.50 87.50
South City International School India 51.50 51.50
JOINT VENTURES
Kolkata Metropolitian South City Development Ltd India 49.97 49.97
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-

47 \ddinonal mformation as required by parageaph 2 of the general mstrucnons for preparation of consohdaton firancial statements to schedule T o the Companies Aet 2013:

Net Assets, ie, Total Assets . Share in Other Comprehensive | Share in Total Comprehensive
< e Share in profit or loss
minus Total Liabilities Income Income
R As " of As % of As % of As % of
| consolidated net | Amount consolidated Amount consolidated Amount consolidated Amount
assets profit or loss profit or loss profit or loss
Parent
South Civ (Kolkara) Projects Limated 143.67" 44,785.36 135.17" 6,42.65 B Rrih iray (8.91) 133.41% 6,033.74
Subsidiaries
Nouth Cay Proygects 12/ 001" 2 001" 0.62 0.15% 108 (L02%, 0.70
Bengl Sourh Cinv Maras Infrastructure Led 003", 1436 001" ©.22 (LOO" ooty (0.22)
Bengal Anmol South Caty Infrastructure Led 272 (837.19) 19.61% (876.83) -0.74% (1.39) 194000 . (877.21)
South Cary Property Management Pyr Led 021" 63.73 L0400 (1.84 Q007 - 004 (1.84)
South Cary Developers Pyt Lid 000" (0.19) 005" (2.31) 000, 03w (2:31)
AN Tnfrapropernes Pyt Lid 11.13"% 3,421.37 831" 371.66 .00 B3:22% 371.66
South City Reteear Property Management Pyt Lad 0,000, ©.97) 0.01% (0.58) 000" = 01 (1.58)
Indocean Developers Prvate Lamted 3934 (1,215.02) -33.86"w (1,513.62) 94.65" 49.37 32.38% (1,464.25)
AA Infra (Niddle Fast) Led. 214" 658.90 1340 399.07 2405 10,46 1348 609.53
AA Infra properties (Jafza) Lid SO0 (10.97) 019 (834 -0.17% (0.09) 01970 842
\djustments 5249 (16,137.28) 313% (139.73) 3.13" 1.63 305" (138.10)
Toul 100%% 30,744.09 100% 4,470.53 100% 52.16 100% 4,522.69
A" [he accompanying notes are an mtegeal part of the consohdated fimancal stuements

As per our report of even date
For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO. For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 329088
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I The Group's mterests i Jomt Venures are reported as Piancial assets - Investments.
2 The Group and /s, Merlin Projects Lid. acting together m a consortum called " South City Merlin Consortium” was awarded 4.40 Acres of land in a competitive bid
mvited by the kolkata Merropolitan: Development Authorty (KMIDA) for the development of Residential and Commercial cum Office Complex, for a sum of Rs. ’
1091400 Lacs (Bid Amount) on ajomt venture basis. As per terms of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) entered between the South Ciny Merlin Consortium and
KD AL company has paid 107w of the bid amount to the KMDA along with an carest money deposie of Rs. 50.00 facs on exceution of MOU. As the entire project
was ro be carmed out on a ot venture basis, anew company was floated m the name and sevle of M/s. Kolkata Metropolitan South Citv Development Ltd. (KNSCDL)
with authorsed share capital of Rs. 100,00 Laes. The Group has agreed 1o subscribe 499,700 Liquity Shares of Rs. 10/- cach aggregating to Rs. 49.97 Jacs v signing the
Memorandum of Assoction of aforesaid KMSCDLL However, the matter s under litigation. In view of this, the Group has kept i abevance the pavment of

ace lurther, 1 was found that due to madvertence from KMDA, erroncous deseription of the Jand was given m- the above

subscription amount of Rs. 49.97

revised to 3.67 Acres. Inspite of repeated requests and

mentoned MOU. As such a Supplemental MOU dated 16/11/2011 was executed where i total area of land wa
remmders, KM\ has not vet handover the land pareels. The Group requested for refund of sum pad to KMDA together with mterest as well as rembursement of
cxpenses meurred. On the failure of KNDA the consortium myoked the Arbitration Clause contamed i the said MOU by apponting Justice Amirava Lala (Retd.) to
adjudicate the dispute. KM m course of the sittings before Justiee Lala, rarsed objection as to s appomntment as Arbitrator and did not agree o the continuance of
the Arbitranon procecdings. [n such arcumstances and as advised the Consortum has decided not to proceed with the said Arbitration and o have a new Arbitrator
appomted i rerms of Sceton T of the Arbitration & Conctliation Act, 1996, In the sad apphcaton u/s 11, Mr. Jayanta Kumar Mitra, Scnior Advocate has been

appormted as the sole Arbirator In the Arbitration, evidence of winesses have been completed and argument has commenced and would be over shortly,

49  Distribution of Dividend

Rs. in Lacs

For the year  |For the year
ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2019  [March, 2018

Dividends on Equity Shares declared and paid:
Iinal dividend for the vear ended 31 Mareh 2018 - Rs. 55.00 per share - " 2,475.39
DD on final dwvidend - 499.63

Toral - 2,975.02




